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Joseph M. Aguayo, CAE 


May 18, 1997 


Leon I. Williams 
Chairman 
Metropolitan Transit Development Board 
1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000 
San Diego, CA 92101-3407 


Dear Leon: 


It 's always a joy to speak with you and Mrs. Williams. As we discussed by phone this week, I enclose 
some background correspondence that I sent to Deputy Mayor Barbara Warden regarding the idea that the 
City of San Diego host a reception for National Urban Fellows Programs in San Diego. At this time, the 
City of Long Beach and City of San Francisco are hosting receptions for NUF in May and June. 


After our phone conversation, Laura McDonald, Barbara 's assistant finally called me back. She 
apologized for her inexcusable delay in responding to my many messages and correspondence. As you 
stated, her reason was an all-out effort to offset the recall campaign. She promised that she would notify 
me of the staff person at Mayor Golding 's office to which she had forwarded my request . I can only 
surmise that after all this time the contact is cold by now. 


Also enclosed is my draft letter to Mr. Luis Alvarez, President of National Urban Fellows, Inc. which 
outlines what we are asking Mayor Golding to do. As a member of the first class of Fellows, I can only 
say that I want to be sure that San Diego receives every consideration in recruitment of Fellows and 
Mentors in the future. You and I recall the many controversies that we became involved with when I was 
a Fellow with Mayor Frank Curran: Toltecas De Atzlan taking over a museum in Balboa Park, the State 
Highway Board dividing the community of San Y zidro, the unequal treatment of youth in South Central 
and many other issues. Unfortunately. I see that time has changed very little. If we do not actively fight to 
keep open the doors of economic , educational and political opportunity, our respective communities will 
not develop and die. 


I trust that with this information, you will speak privately to Mayor Golding about the value of hosting a 
breakfast or luncheon reception for the outstanding array of National Urban Fellows fellowship programs 
in San Diego. Remember that we are speaking of fellowships in Public Administration as well as 
Environmental Science and Management and in the future Science and Technology. These fellowships 
will assure that our sons and daughters (maybe grandsons and granddaughters, too) will keep up with the 
latest career challenges into the 21st Century. Believe me, these programs are in the best interests of San 
Diego and Americas as well, Leon. 


I look forward to working closely with you on this and other issues of concern to San Diego. Best regards 
to Mrs. Williams and be assured of my continuing admiration for you, Leon. Please call me at any time for 
additional information. Also let me know when Martha and I can take you and Mrs. Williams to 
Universal CitiWalk for dinner. Let's make it soon. 


8120 Melba Avenue • West Hills, C,A 91304 • (818) 992-1033 • Fax: (818) 992-5419 • E-mail: aguayoinc@aol.com 
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May 19, 1997 


Honorable Susan Golding 
Mayor 
City of San Diego 
202 C Street, 
San Diego California 9210 1 


Dear Mayor Goldmg: 


tms-oY1g.o26. rra o?~ 


D~AFT 


It is a great pleasure for me to share the news that the National Urban Fellows wdl soon be 
celebrating its 30th Anniversary. Launched in 1969 as a joint venture by the Ford Foundation, 
National League of Cities/U.S. Conference ofMa ors, National Urban Fellows, Inc. extended its 
national leadership training model in 1985 by creating the Corporate Executive Fellow.f Program 
and in 1991 the Environment .~'cienc:e and Management Fellows Program. During this period, our 
mission and performance have never wavered. National Urban Fellows Inc . has excelled at the 
recruitment training and the graduation of more than 600 talented mid-<:areer women and minority 
professionals in the vital fields of public policy and public administration. 


From our inception in 1969, San Diego has been among our Pioneer Ctties and over the past two 
decades has mentored and graduated scores of National Urban Fellov executives A number of 
them li e and work in various public and pri ate sector postbons in San Diego at this moment. 
(Give listing of San Diego Fellows???). You will be pleased to know that among our 
Distinguished Mentors from San Diego have been· 


Ray T Blair Jr , City Manager 
Charles R. Bobertz.. Assistant Ch1ef Administrati e Officer 
Gran tile M. Bowman, Director, Dept ofPubhc Works 
Ruben Dominguez fonner Admimstrati e Officer, County Human Resources Agency 
Se ero Esqui el, Deputy Cat · Manager 


hfford W Gra es, former Chief Admirustratl e Officer, ounty of San Diego and 
recently Chief Executi e Officer, San Franc1sco Redevelopment Agcnc. 


orman Hkke ·, Chief Administrati e Officer, County of San D1ego 
Richard Huff, Executive Duector, Comprehensi e Planning Organizatton 
Richard W. Jacobsen, Director Department of Soctal Semces, County of San D1ego 
Hugh McKinley. ity Manager, City of San Otego 
Benjamin MontiJO. Executive Director, San D1ego Housing Conurussion 
Robert L. SmalJ, Administrator, En irorunental De elopment Agency 
Jack Walsh, County Supervtsor, Coun of San Diego 


You can imagine why we are so proud of our past relationship \\1th the City and County of an 
Diego. Recent events ha e led us to the conclusion that San Otego hould become a centerpiece of 
our efforts to enhance our Calitorrua recruitment dri e espec&ally in the fields of Public 
Admini trail on, Environmental .X·1ence and Management and m the future, Science and 
Technology. 







Letter to Hon. Susan Golding 
May 19, 1997 
Page Two 


DRAFT 


One of our fellows of the Pioneer Class of ' 70 from San Diego Joe Agua o was asked to deliver a 
luncheon address at the National Community Economic Development Day sponsored by San 
Diego State University hosted by Dr. Harold Brown. Joe received twelve inquiries about NUF 
programs from young men and women who attended the luncheon. He also spoke with Deputy 
Ma or, Barbara Warden who expressed interest the idea of the City of San Diego becoming 
involved in promoting the National Urban Fellows fellowship programs. We believe that there are 
many more talented men and women in San Diego who need to know the arra ofNUF fellowshtp 
programs available. Likewise, man company executives and assoctation leaders in the San Diego 
area need to be recruited to serve as Mentors for the next generation of San Diego leadership for 
the 21 11 Century. 


In view of our past highly successful association with the City of San Diego and the need to 
reinforce our recruitment of Fellows and Mentors, I would like to request a meeting to explore with 
you and your staff the opportunities for an enhanced presence of NUF programs in the San Diego 
area. As an example of our successful NUF I California Cities Program, I enclose an invitation b 
Mayor Bever! 0 Neill of the City of Long Beach who is hosting a luncheon reception for NUF. 
Inc. on May 28th. Chevron USA is also hosting a breakfast reception for NUF, Inc. in San 
Francisco on June 19th . As you can see, each of these major ctties is proud of their association 
with NUF and are offering their good offices to promote and identify top level prospective Fellov s 
and Mentors in their respective communities. We are pleased to join these outstanding leaders and 
look to the City of San Diego to join us in this special promotional drive. 


Since I will be attending the luncheon reception in Long Beach, I wonder if it would be convenient 
to meet on the morning ofThursda., May 29th at your office in San Otego? We could discuss the 
advantages of either a breakfast or luncheon receptJon for UF. suitable stte, guest list of 
prospective Fellow candidates and prospective Mentor compan1es and associations. 


Knowing of your outstanding leadcrstup in the area of effectJ e government and your abihty to 
related to the flC\ generation of oung v omen and men who asp1re to professional traming and 
careers in San Otego, I am confident that our \\Ork together in San D1ego will be of mutual benefit 


I will be glad to call our office next week to dctemune tf the date and tJme of our brief meetmg. 


Smcerel 


Luis Alvarez.., 
President 


cc: -materials. 








May 7, 1 


Mr. Joseph Aguayo 
Principal 
JMA Associates 
8120 Melba Avenue 
West Hills, CA 91304 


Dear Mr. Aguayo: 


fills -0 ~qg_ 026. 010.004] 


t©rPV BEVERLY O'NEILL 


MAYOR 


CITY OF LONG BEACH 


Please join me at a luncheon honoring the National Urban Fellows, Inc. on Wednesday, May 28, 1997. 
The event will beheld at the Long Beach Hilton Hotel, 2nd floor, from 12:00 to 1:30 p.m. 


For more than a quarter century, National Urban Fellows, Inc. has excelled at the identification, 
recruitment and training of talented individuals from under-represented communities and women 
throughout the country, who seek to further their professional and leadership abilities in the field of 
Public Policy, Public Administration and in the private sector. Launched in 1969, as a joint venture of 
The Ford Foundation, the National League of Cities/U.S. Conference of Mayors and Yale University, 
the National Urban Fellows, Inc. (NUF) has replicated its successful model with two other fellowship 
programs. In 1985, the Corporate Executive Fellowships (CEF) program was established, and in 
1991 an Environmental Science & Management Fellowship (ESMF) was founded. All of the programs 
operate at the graduate level. 


The upcoming luncheon serves to applaud the more than two decades of service by this distinguished 
national leadership program. The City of Long Beach enjoys a unique and cordial relationship with 
NUF and looks forward to serving as an educational and training environment for leadership for women 
and minority leadership development. Your presence at this memorable event will provide an 
opportunity to introduce you to the National Urban Fellows program and specifically to Mr. Luis 
Alvarez, President and alumnus of the program. Mr. Alvarez will discuss plans for preparing a new 
generation of leadership for the unique challenges of the 21st Century. In addition, you will meet a 
number of well known NUF graduates, mentors and financial supporters. 


Knowing of your interest and support of well trained leadership development in the City of Long Beach, 
your participation in the luncheon would be time well spent. Please confirm your attendance by calling 
Nina Spradling, (562) 570-3851, before 5:00p.m. on May 15, 1997. I look forward to seeing you on 
May 28th. 


Cor,lly, , 
~ {J;·'I~uU 


Beverly O'Neill 
Mayor 
BO'N:ns 


CIVIC CENTER PLAZA 333 WEST OCEAN BOULEVARD LONG BEACH , CALIFORNIA 90802 
TELEPHONE: 562-5 70-680 I FAX : 562-5 70-6538 IDD: 562-5 70-6629 
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I GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 


All applicants must meet the following MINI­


MUM requirements: 


• U.S. Citizenship 


• Bachelor's degree 


Exceptional leadership abilities 


• Meet admission requirements of Duke 
University 


• High standard of integrity and work 
ethic 


• Possess self-discipline, interpersonal 
and problem-solving skills 


• 3 to 5 years of experience in a mana­
gerial or administrative capacity in the 
environmental field 


. • Willingness to relocate as required by 
the mentorship 


I THE SELECTION PROCESS 


Candidates are recruited through a 
nationwide outreach campaign. The 
Environmental Science & Management 
Fellows Screening Committee reviews 
applications for outstanding candidates, and 
recommends them to the Interviewing 
Committee. The Interviewing Committee 
conducts a rigorous selection based on 
submitted documents, and personal and 
group interviews . The committees are 
comprised of faculty members from Duke 
University, program alumni, mentors, and the 
staff of National Urban Fellows, Inc. 


For more information, please call (212) 921-9400. National Urban Fellows, Inc. 
55 West .44th Street, Suite 600 
New York, NY 10036 
(212) 921-9.400 
(212) 921-9572 (fax) 


A PROGRAM OF 
NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 







Environmental Science & Manage­
ment Fellows is a program of National 
Urban Fellows, Inc., a 501 © (3) nonprofit 


organizat ion, founded in 1969 as a 
cooperative project of Yale University, the 
National League of Cities and the U.S. 
Conference of Mayors, with financial support 
from the Ford Foundation . After 26 years, 
the National Urban Fellows, Inc. stands as a 
model for leadership training, having 
qualified approximately 700 men and women 
for executive positions in public and private 
institutions in the United States, Puerto Rico, 
Africa and Europe. 


I PROGRAM DESIGN 


Environmental Science & Management 
Fellows (ESMF) is a highly focused and 
rigorous graduate program encompassing 
academic course work and field experience 
(mentorship} . ESMF was established in 
September 1990 to increase the number of 
women and minorit ies in senior level positions 
in the environmental field. 


I THE ACADEMIC COMPONENT 


ESMF offers Fellows the opportunity to earn a 
Master of Environmental Management (MEM} 
degree from Duke University, Nicholas School 
of the Environment. Fellows are admitted as 
full-time graduate students who participate 
i n the ·activities of the Duke University 
community during two semesters of academic 
course work on campus. Duke' s programs 
a re des igned for students ... with d iverse 
undergraduate backgrounds in the natural 
and physical sciences, social sciences, 
business, and engineering . Professional 
programs include: ' 


• Biohazard Science 
• Coastal Environmental Management 


• Envi~onmental Toxicology, Chemistry, and Risk 


Assessment 


• Resource Ecology 
• Resource Economics ond Policy 
• Water and Air Resources 


MEM degree candidates must complete 36 
units and a Master's project in the Nicholas 
School of the Environment. -


The emphasis on science, econbmics, 
quantitative methods, communication and · 
team building gives graduates a set of 
professional skills that can be applied to a 
variety of management problems, including 
those that go beyond environmental 
management. 


I THE MENTORSHIP COMPONENT 


The 1 2 month mentorship complements the 
academic component and enhances 
professional competence. The mentorsh ip 
places Fellows w ith senior environmental 
scientists and administrators at the highest 
levels of leadersh ip and respons ibil ity in 
government agencies and co rporations . 
Mentors have the capabil ity and commitment 
to share essential knowledge and insight 
acquired during their career. 


' 
Mentor participants include the C ity of 
Richmond , Brtistoi -Myers Squibb Company, 
Broward County, U. S. Envi ronmental 
Protection Agency, National Institute of 
Environmental Health Sciences, New York City 
Department of Environmental Protection, and 
Indiana Department of Env i ronmental 
Management. 


Fellows begin their mentorship assignment 
subsequent to successful completion of the 
fall and spring semesters at Duke. Placements 
begin in June and continue through June of 
the following year. Since placements are 
nationwide, Fellows are expected to relocate 


to the city of their mentor assignment. The 
needs and interests of the Fellows and mentors 
are carefully assessed and matched to provide 
the best experience for both Fellows and 
mentors. Fellows are expected to perform 
responsibly in managing critical assignments 
during this core segment of the fellowship . 
Fellows have managed projects including, but 
not limited to : -


• Ecosystem preservation and habitat restoration 
• Water and air quality 
• Radioactive mixed waste 


• Hazardous waste disposal and treatment 
• Radiation health and safety protection 
• Health effects and risk management 


• Pollution prevention 
• Environmental education and outreach; policy 


development and analysis 
• Brownfield redevelopment 


Fellows must successfully complete the 
academic and mentorship components in 
order to receive a Master of Environmental 
Management degree f rom Duke University. 


I FELLOWSHIP AWARD AND BENEFITS I 
Each Fellow receives up to $30,000 for the 
entire 21 month fellowsh ip. The award is 
d isbursed th rough monthly stipends, and is 
fully taxable. Although the award is generous, 
acceptance of the fellowsh ip will, in most 
cases, involve f inancial sacrifice. Fellows also 
receive : 


• Full payment of tuition 
• Relocation allowance ($500) 
• Reimbursement for program related travel 


Fellows are not perm itted to hold paid 
employment during the fellowship, and must 
consistently meet academic and program 
standards in order to maintain fellowship 
status and continuation of award and benefits. 







ENVIRO MENTAL SCIENCE & 
MANAGEME T FELLOWS 
Statistical Proftle: 1991-1996 


RACE 0- PERCENT 


African-American 21 64% 


Hispanic 4 12% 


a rive-American 4 12% 


Caucasian 3 9% 


Asian 3% 


TOTAL 33 100% 


G ENDER 
Female 19 58% 


Male 14 42% 


T OT L 33 100% 


ED n PPU no 
BA or BS deg(ee I 


MBA or M degree 2 


MED GE 32 


FELL ' PRESENT LOC no BY TATE 


Arizon I 


California 2 


Di ' trict of Columbia 8 


Floridl 1 


Indiana 2 


Maine 2 


aryland 2 


assacbusetts 3 


Montana 
ew Jersey l 


ew York 3 
ortb Carolina 5 


Ohio 1 


lrpma I 


T T FEU 3 








GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 


• U.S. Citizenship 


• Bachelor' s degree 


r~/. 


8 . 
Demonstrated leadership abilities 


d . 
t:5 


Meet admission requirements of Baruch College 


Possess self-discipline, interpersonal and problem­
solving skills 


• High standard of integrity and work ethic 


0 • Commitment to the solution of urban and rural 


~ problems 


D • A minimum of 3-5 years work experience in a 
..;" managerial or administrative capacity 
t§ 


THE SELECTION PROCESS 


Candidates are recruited through a nationwide 
outreach campaign. The National Urban/Rural 
Fellows Screening Committee reviews applications for 
outstanding candidates, and recommends them to the 
Interviewing Committee. The Interviewing 
Committee conducts a rigorous selection based on 
submitted documents and personal and group 
interviews. The Committees are comprised of Baruch 
faculty and administrators, program alumni , Mentors 
and staff of National Urban Fellows, Inc. 


For more information call (212) 921-9400. 


National Urban Fellows, Inc. 
55 West 44th Street, Suite 600 
New York, NY I 0036 
(212) 921-9400 
(212) 921-9572 fax 


NATIONAL 
Urban/Rural 
FELLOWS 


A PROGRAM OF NATIONAL 
URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 







N
ational Urban/Rural Fellows program is the 
cornerstone ofNational Urban Fellows, Inc., a 
private not-for-profit organization founded in 
1969, as a cooperative project of Yale 


University, the National League of Cities and the U.S. 
Conference of Mayors, with financial support from the 
Ford Foundation. After 26 years, the National Urban 
Fellows, Inc. stands as a model for leadership training, 
having qualified nearly 700 men and women for 
executive positions in public and private institutions 
throughout the United States, Puerto Rico, Africa and 
Europe. 


PROGRAM DESIGN 


National Urban/Rural Fellows is a rigorous, full-time 
graduate program comprised of academic course work 
and field experience, leading to a Master of Public 
Administration (MPA) from Bernard M. Baruch 
College, School of Public Affairs, City University of 
New York. Program elements include: 


• Initial summer semester on the Baruch campus 


• Nine-month mentorship assignment 


• Mid-Year Conference 


• Final summer semester at Baruch 


During the mentorship, Fellows complete course work 
via correspondence with the Baruch faculty . An MPA 
is awarded to Fellows upon completion of all 
academic and program requirements. 


The MP A Program - Bernard M. Baruch 
College, City University of New York 


Baruch College has been the academic home of the 
National Urban/Rural Fellows since 1982. The Master 
of Public Administration (MPA) program is accredited 
by the National Association of Schools of Public 
Affairs and Administration. The curriculum prepares 
Fellows for leadership roles in public policy and 
administration in government agencies and not-for­
profit organizations. It includes: 


• The Political Setting of Public Administration and 
Public Policy 


• Administrative Management 


• Public Budget Administration 


• Computer Methodology and Information Systems 


• Mentors hip in Public Administration and Urban 
Fellowship 


• Advanced Studies in Administrative Management 


• Introduction to Research and Data Analysis 


• Policy Research Seminar 


As a result, Fellows learn contemporary managerial 
and analytical methods that apply to a wide range of 
program areas. 


The Mentorship 


Fellows who successfully complete the first semester 
proceed to a nine-month assignment with a senior 
executive in a government agency (federal, state, city 
or county) or in a major not-for-profit. Placements are 
nationwide and Fellows are expected to relocate to the 
city of their mentor assignment. The needs and 
interests of the Mentors and Fellows are carefully 
assessed and matched to provide the optimum 
experience for both Fellows and Mentors . 


As a complement to the academic component, the 
mentorship builds professional competence and opens 
up new areas of interest and employment. Fellows are 
expected to perform responsibly in managing critical 
assignments during this core segment of the 
fellowship. Former and present Mentors include 
mayors, governors, city and county managers, 
members of Congress, commissioners, and executive 
directors of major not-for-profit organizations. 


".\'flared rl'\flllll\ihili~r am//cadcnhip./roma/1 
\l'don of our \odc~r i\ rctfllircd to 1'11\llfl' our 
/utllrc." --Lui' .\1\ an·t. l'rc,idcnt 


'\ationall rhan Fcllo"'· Inc. 


The Mid-Year Conference 


The Mid-Year Conference brings together Baruch 
faculty and Fellows during the fifth month of the 
mentorship for additional course work and an 
opportunity to share professional and personal 
experiences. During the conference, Fellows and 
Mentors explore leadership strategies that can affect 
the nation's public policy, as well as discuss the 
Fellows' career mobility. Prominent mentors and 
public service officials are invited to share their 
insights with the Fellows during the conference. 


THE ALUMNI NETWORK 


There are nearly 700 graduates of the National 
Urban/Rural Fellows program. Alumni hold positions 
of leadership, influence and responsibility in over 40 
states, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the 
confederated states of Micronesia. Graduates serve as 
elected officials, senior executives and entrepreneurs 
and also serve as Mentors. Along with the mentorship 
assignment, the Alumni Network is an excellent 
resource for employment after completion of the 
fellowship. 


FELLOWSHII, A \V ARI> ANI> BENEFITS 


Each Fellow receives up to $20,000 for the entire 14 
month fellowship. The award is made through 
monthly stipends and is fully taxable. Although the 
award is generous, acceptance of the fellowship will , 
in most cases, involve financial sacrifice. In addition 
to the stipend, Fellows receive: 


• Full payment of tuition 


• Relocation allowance ($500) 


• Reimbursement for program related travel 


Fellows are not permitted to hold paid employment 
during the fellowship. To maintain fellowship status 
and continuation of fellowship award and benefits, 
Fellows must meet program and academic standards. 







NATIONAL URBAN/ RURAL FELLOWS 


A Statistical Profile: 1969-1997 


RACIAL/ ETHNIC ORIGIN No. Percent 
African-American 366 55% 
Hispanic 215 33% 
White 36 5% 
Native American 18 3% 
Asian American 21 3% 
Other 4 1% 


Total 660 100% 


GENDER 
Female 316 48% 
Mole 344 52% 


Total 660 100% 


AGE AT APPLICATION 
Age Range 24-55 
Avg. Age Females 34.1 
Avg. Age Moles 34.1 


FELLOW ' PRE E TLO TIO BY 
T TE 


Alabama 3 
Arizona 12 
Arkansas 3 
Californ ia 80 
Colorado 5 
Connecticut 5 
Delaware 1 
Distrid of Columbia 36 
Florida 18 
Georgia 16 
Hawaii 5 
Illinois 10 
Indiana 5 
Iowa 4 
Kentucky 1 







FELLOWS' PRESENT LOCATION BY STATE 
cont 'd 


Louisiana 2 
Maine 1 
Maryland 17 
Massachusetts 6 
Michigan 8 
Minnesota 1 
Mississippi 6 
Missouri 3 
Nevada 2 
New Jersey 25 
New Mexico 17 
New York 105 
North Carolina 8 
Ohio 27 
Oklahoma 2 
Oregon 3 
Pennsylvania 14 
South Carolina 1 
Tennessee 2 
Texas 19 
Vermont 1 
Virginia 11 
Washington 11 
Wisconsin 2 
Sub-total of Fellows in 
37 States & 
the District of Columbia 498 


U.S. Territories or Commonwealth: 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 6 
Foreign Countries 3 
Address Unknown 133 
Deceased 20 


TOTAL FELLOWS 660 








'NATIONAL 
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PRESS RELEASE 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
December 3, 1996 


CONTACT: Roy Cosme 
211-921-9400 


or 212-477-5648 


SHARED RESPONSmaiTY AND LEADERSHIP FOR A NEW AMERICA 
National Urban/Rural Fellows Impart a Vision of the Future 


York, NY-- December 3, 1996- Some people have called it a silent revolution-- an 


intellectual revolution that promises to deliver change. It has been brewing in this country 


for over 26 years and in that time, over 700 individuals of diverse backgrounds and living 


throughout the country and in Puerto Rico have been armed with Masters degrees and life 


experiences to help them lead in the public sector. The program is the National 


Urban/Rural Fellows; its mission is to identify, recruit. and train men and women from 


racial and ethnic communities to executive and policy-making positions in the public 


sector, thus, sharing responsibility and leadership for the future of America. 


It began in 1969, as a cooperative project of the National League of Cities and the 


U.S. Conference ofMayors in collaboration with Yale University and with financial 


support from the Ford Foundation. Since then, it has received financial backing from 


major American corporations such as American Airlines, AT & T, Exxon, Coca Cola, 


American Express, Philip Morris Companies, General Electric, Xerox, Metropolitan Life, 


-more-







National Urban FeUows/2 


Johnson & Johnson and many more. Foundation support is also distinguished including 


the Ford Foundation, Richard King MeDon Foundation, the Cleveland Foundation, George 


Gund Foundation, the Lilly Endowment and a host of others. The success of the program, 


it seems, has not gone unnoticed. 


Purpose 


"The country cries out for effective leadership -- particularly leadership from 


diverse racial and ethnic communities," says Luis Alvarez, President ofNational Urban 


Fellows, Inc. Mr. Alvarez, who is a 1972 graduate ofthe program, has been leading the 


organization since 1976. "Our view has changed," he says, "we no longer consider 


ourselves as prospective leaders for our communities, but also for the nation." 


Indeed, it is a chaJJenging time for America -- a time when public policies and 


social systems, instituted over the last fifty years, are being questioned, radically altered 


and, in some cases, abandoned for new ways of conducting business and providing for the 


public good. It is a time when projected demographic shifts in major population centers 


throughout the country have taken hold and created new expectations of business, public 


leaders and public institutions. As envisioned by National Urban Fellows, Inc. it is a time 


which requires fuU participation of our citizens in the dialogue and evaluation of public 


policies and demands the broadening of America's leadership base to include people from 


all sectors of our society in government. 


-more-
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Why the Public Sedor 


National Urban/Rural Fellows is a rigorous, full-time graduate program comprised 


of academic course work and field experience, leading to a Master of Public 


Administration (MPA) from Bernard M. Baruch College, School ofPublic Affairs, City 


University ofNew York. Speaking at a recent graduation ceremony for the outgoing class 


of fellows, Dean Ron Beckman stated, "At a time when public service has been demeaned 


at the local, state and federal levels, even by those in public service, it is admirable that 


these National Urban/Rural Fellows have committed themselves to a career in public 


service." The Dean's observation may be a harsh reality of our times, but listening to the 


views of the fellows, you would hardly believe it to be an issue. 


Randy Hill, age 36 from Cleveland, Ohio stated, "There is always a need for 


service and certain voices need to be heard." He intends to provide a voice for his 


community back home and contribute to how public programs are managed. Prior to 


becoming a fellow, Randy was a Unit Supervisor of Customer Service for the Sewer & 


Water Department of the City of Cleveland. 


The youngest fellow in the Class of '96, Gina Amaro, age 24 years, is a native 


New Yorker with strong roots in the city's Puerto Rican community. She feels it is her 


responsibility to serve in the public sector. "I've been privileged," she claims, "as a Latina 


with advantages, because of the work others before me have accomplished. Elders have 


served me and we need fresh blood. I am the fresh blood." 


-more-
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Yet another view on public service belongs to Ubaldo Lebron, an occupy 


education specialist from Massachusetts with an interest in administration and 


management. Perhaps a more practical perspective on the need for government workers, 


he commented, "We have not reached the state of nirvana where everyone is responsible 


for themselves and the state does not have to control anything." He also pointed to the 


lack of representation of Latinos at high levels of government as motivation for his pursuit 


of a Master ofPublic Administration degree through the National Urban/Rural Fellows 


program. 


The desire to fill the gap of representation of minority men and women in 


government and to serve as advocates within the public system for their particular 


community seemed to be a common thread among the fellows. Together in this desire, 


they form strong bonds while in the program and the sense of community within the group 


seems natural. As a network of alumni, 700 strong, they have a capacity to effect change 


in government and the public sector in general. 


Mentor Assignment 


As a complement to the academic component, the National Urban/Rural Fellows 


program provides a nine month assignment with a mentor, nonnally a senior executive in a 


government agency (federal, state, city or county) or in a not-for-profit agency. The 


mentor assignment learned allows the fellows to acquire first-hand experience and an in­


depth view of management styles in public or not-profit organizations. This experience, 


combined with a graduate degree at the end of the program, provides fellows with the 


-more-
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credentials to seek and secure leadership positions in the public sector. 


Tobeka Green, age 26, assigned to the Points of Light Foundation had Robert 


Goodwing, CEO & President, as her mentor. Her responsibility was to plan and launch 


Connect America, a special initiative directed at corporations, community organizations, 


non-profit agencies, groups of faith and membership organizations, which seeks to raise 


voluntarism in America "I feel like this mentorship has perfectly positioned me for the 


rest of my life," she said. "It was a phenomenal experience." 


Rufina Juarez, age 32, is from West Marlin, a small town in the Imperial Valley of 


Southern California, southeast of San Diego. She went from working as a community 


advocate in her hometown to serving as a Special Assistant to Joseph Drew, Chief 


Executive Officer of the Los Angeles Metropolitan Transportation Authority during her 


mentor assignment. "I've a lot from a management and administration perspective," she 


said. "1 feel like I've changed career direction to the transportation area." 


According to Edwin Acevedo, the Director of the National Urban/Rural Fellows 


program, Ms. Juarez's experience is not uncommon. "Mentors spend valuable time 


coaching and grooming fellows in their organization," be said. "As a result, the 


assignments often open doors to new career choices." 


Susan Schick, Director of Community Development for the City of Long Beach, 


California has been a mentor since 1989. She thinks it is important for agencies like hers 


-more-
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to utilize proven programs with emphasis on diversity. She stated, "It is a great way to 


get excellent, highly trained staff that can add value to an organization, especially if you 


can retain them." 


The National Urban Fellows, Inc., with a long and reputable history of matching 


organizational needs with the ideals and interests of individuals seeking to grow and 


contribute to society, continues with a view of the future. While the National Urban/Rural 


Fellows program is the cornerstone of its program offerings, the organization also 


operates the Environmental Science & Management Program. Similarly structured, its 


goal is to increase the number of women and people of color in senior level positions in 


the environmental field. 


"We are making a difference," claims Mr. Alvarez, "and we look forward to 


working with government agencies, national organizations and individuals who are also 


interested in contnbuting to America' s future." Individuals and organizations interested in 


participating in National Urban Fellows programs, either as a fellow or mentor, should 


contact the National Urban Fellows office in New York by calling 212-921-9400, faxing at 


212-921-9572 or writing: National Urban Fellows, Inc., SS West 44th Street, Suite 600, 


New York, NY 10036. 


### 
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE--
Twenty-five years have elapsed since the founding of the 
National Urban Fellows, Inc., in 1969. 


Initially established as a cooperative project of Yale Uni­
versity, the National league of Cities, and the U.S. 
Conference of Mayors, NUF was charged with a mission 
to identify, recruit, and train minority men and women to 
occupy leadership and policy-making positions in 
America's cities : 


In 1980, the organization expanded that mission and cre­
ated the National Rural Fellows program to address the 
economic and community leadership needs of rural 
America. In 1984, we merged the National Urban and 
the Rural Fellows programs to form the National Urban/ 
Rural Fellows program. In 1985, we launched the Corpo-
rate Executive Fellows program to increase opportunities 
for women and minorities in business and industry. In 1990, we added the two-year Environmental 
Science and Management Fellows program to introduce women and minorities into the critical field of 
environmental science and management. 


I am proud to have served both as a member of the Board of Directors and as a fellowship mentor. I am 
also proud that we have enjoyed the financial support of American Airlines, of which I am an officer, and 
other corporati ons with a commitment to both excellence and diversity . I invite them to share in my pride 
in NUF's accomplishments. Its programs thus far have graduated more than seven hundred fellows, men 
and women who now occupy positions of increasing responsibility and influence in their respective 


fields. 


To no small degree, this record of achievement has been due to the dedicated and effective leader hip, 
first, of Frank Logue, NUF 's founding project director who now serves on our Board of Directors, and of 
Luis Alvarez , who has served as President since 1976. Their vision and determination have in pi red both 
the members of the Board and the participating fellows . 


The Board of Directors is committed to continue this valuable program into the future and provide it with 
the drive, imagination, and innovation needed for the challenges of the next century. 


Ted Tedesco 
Chairman 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 







PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT --
I think the song of the sirens must have been an invitation 
to rest on one's laurels: an honor to be valued but a temp­
tation to be resisted. Our achievements of the last 
twenty-five years, gratifying as they are, must be viewed as 
standards to be surpassed in the years to come. 


We have created and developed a model for leadership 
training, a model which can be replicated in many other 
fields now underserved by women and minorities. We must 
explore ways to make such opportunities available to many 
more qualified candidates in many more areas of profes­
sional activity. 


Now we must aim for operational self-sufficiency to re­
duc~ o~r ?ependency on foundation and corporate grants 
and Individual contributions. And in so doing, we must be sensitive to the needs of the organization itself 
through the development of an organizational infrastructure sufficient to administer a growing program 
and address a growing need. 


We have take~ important first measures toward these goals. Thanks to the efforts of the Board of Direc­
tors, we have lmplement.ed impr~ved management information systems and fiscal controls. The Board 
has undertaken a strateg1c plannmg exercise to chart the directions of future expansion and develop­
ment. 


This study ":'ill establish goals for growth and the tactics for achieving those goals. It will create a time-
table for act1on and criter'1a fo 1 • h' · . · · d · 't 


r eva uatmg ac 1evement. It will determme the organ1zat1onal nee s requ1SI e 
to program replication and growth. 


Our mission does not per ·t 1 · h 
d ml comp acency; 1t compels us to renewed dedication and effort. We ave 


ma e a good start over the pa t tw f ' 
s enty- 1ve years, but we have only just begun. 


I want to mark this occasion b th k' · · h 
·b d Y an mg our staff whose program direction and personal ded1cat10n ave 


codntn ~te so much to our success. I want to thank the members of our Board for their valuable counsel 
an asSIStance I look forward t th · . d 


· o e1r contmue support of this important endeavor. 


Luis Alvarez 
Pres1dent 


NATIONAL URBAN/RURAL FELLOWS------ - --


Contributing to the nations cadre of racially and ethnically diverse professionals 
in public policy and management ... 


The National Urban/Rural Fellows Program, now com­
pleting its twenty-fifth year, is the model for all National 
Urban Fellows' programs and is a national leadership 
training model. It provides mid-career minority members 
and women in public sector professions an opportunity 
to increase the range and strength of their leadership skills 
and to earn a Master in Public Administration. The pro­
gram advances their careers while it adds to the nation's 
cadre of diverse professionals in public policy and man­
agement. 


PROGRAM DESIGN 


By combining academic training and 
on-the-job experience, National Urban/ 
Rural Fellows enhance their administra­
tive and managerial competence. Fellows 
first begin an intensive academic course 
of instruction at Bernard M. Baruch Col­
lege of the City University of New York. 
Then Fellows assume a nine month 
Mentorship assignment under the guid­
ance of a high level, public sector 
administrator. While continuing their for­
mal instruction, Fellows serve as special 
assistants to their Mentors and contribute 
to the work of the sponsoring agency 


In the Fall of 1994, the Bernard M. Baruch College ex­
panded its academic program in public affairs by creating 
the School of Public Affairs. The National Urban/Rural 
Fellows program remains a significant partner in these 
developments. All Fellows must complete four courses 
for twelve credits during the first academic summer ses­
sion. These courses are: 


• The Political Setting of Public Administration and 
Public Policy 


• Administrative Management 


• Computer Methodology and 
Information Systems 


• Introduction to Research and 
Data Analysis 


Fellows complete five additional courses for 
twenty-one credits during the Mentorship 
period: 


• Mentorship in Public Adminis­
tration 


• Urban Fellowship 


• Advanced Studies in Adminis­
trative Management 


• Public Budget Administration 
through involvement in substantive Edwin D. Acevedo, Director • Policy Research Seminar "The 


Capstone" projects. Fellows attend a week-long, 
mid-year conference for additional course work and to share 
their insights with other Fellows and Mentors as part of 
the learning experience. 


The Fellowship culminates in a second academic ses­
sion at Baruch College, and on successful completion, 
Fellows earn a Master in Public Admin istration, broad­
ening their range of professional opportunity. 


THE ACADEMIC PROGRAM 


The Master of Public Administration at Baruch College 
is fully accredited by the National Association of S~ho?~s 
of Public Administration and Affairs. It has been s1gn1f1-
cantly expanded to accommodate the nee~s of Fello.ws 
who usually are mid-career professionals w1th extens1ve 
work and academic backgrounds. The Baruch College 
program offers a concentration on both rural and urban 
issues, providing a forum in whi~h the con~erns of ~oth 
perspectives are presented and 1mportant Interrelation­
ships between them explored. 


THE MENTORSHIP PROGRAM 


Mentorship is the hallmark of National Urban Fellows, Inc. 
programs, and for many Fellows, it is the high point of their 
experience. 


Fellows are matched w ith Mentors, who are sen ior ur­
ban and rural administrators, in a careful effort to provide 
the best possible learning and work exper ience. Mentors 
make a commitment to give Fellows substantive involve­
ment in the real work of their agencies at a level which 
affords them an unique opportunity to observe and par­
ticipate in the 'nuts and bolts' processes of government 
and public policy making. 


Fellows typically work at the level of executive assistant 
and are charged with significant staff responsibilities. Ex­
amples of their activities have included analyzing the 
aviation/transportation policies of a major city; conducting 







engineering operations audits to help formulate a city's 
reorganization plans; serving as liaison between the 
mayor's office and local agencies for city-wide initiatives; 
participating in financial and structural analyses of the 
United Way of Tri-State; helping to reorganize an urban 
youth services delivery system; and assuming administra­
tive duties for special project initiatives at both city and county 
levels. 


These positions provide the Fellows with an invaluable 
opportunity to experience public policy planning and 
implementation while it takes place and, in broader per­
spective, to examine the local, regional, and national 
issues in play. 


A GROWING NETWORK 


In its twenty-five years, the National Urban/Rural Fel­
lows program has awarded more than 600 fellowships 
and has a distinguished alumni(ae) of motivated and com­
mitted women and minorities, many of whom have 
attained top-level positions including mayoralties, legis­
lative seats, and at least one federal cabinet position . 


These Fellows and the Mentors make up a national net­
work of public administrators that is growing in size and 
in significance, creating a leadership cadre to meet the 
program's mandate to make government more represen­
tative of and more responsive to a broadly diversified 
constituency. 


A full listing of the National Urban/Rural Fellows for the 
last twenty-five years comprises a separate Biographies/ 
~irectory, available on request. The list is an impressive 
d1rectory to some of the most influential and responsible 
leaders in the public sector today. 


A list of current Mentors concludes this Report. But spe­
cial mention should be made of the fact that some of the 
Fello~s from earlier classes are now serving as Mentors, 
a test1mony to their belief in the program's effectiveness 
and social value. 


NATIONAL URBAN/RURAL FELLOWS---------


CLASS OF 1995 
1 st row: (seated left to right) 
Barbara A. Dodds, Barbara Gill , 
Linda R. Salidibar (Director) , 
Luis Alvarez (President ), 
DeMecia Wooten-Irizarry, 
Nereida Cintron 


2nd row: (standing) 
Rodney Falls, William Coleman, 
Adrienne Hayes, jermane Enoch , 
Cecilia Gaston, Michael Taylor, 
Jennifer Houston, Robert Mejia 


3rd row: (standing) 
Diana Macias, Ben Loya, 
Adrienne Merced, julita Milliner, 
Louis Rivera , Anita Rocha , 
Edwin Suarez II 


CLASS OF 1994 
1 st row: (seated left to right) 
Sandra Kovan , Steven Walker, 
Edwin D . Acevedo (Director), 
Luis Alvarez (President), 
Sandra Bonilla , jane Lockhart 


2nd row: (standing) 
George Marquez, . 
juanita A. Haddad, Al1ce S. Yoo, 
Nadra K. Ri chardson, 
Lor i Pemberton , Mirka j . Negroni , 
Mary Hurtado, Rosa M . Garcia , 
Melissa Mark-Viverito, 
Donna Frisby, 
Ferd inand (Trey) F. Fischer 


3rd row: (standing) 
Trevor Scotland, Sharon A. Denton , 
Barbara Brown, Yvette L. Brissette, 
Maritza E. Espinosa, 
Carolyn Mclaughlin , 
Anne Coleman, john Robinson , 
Natoya Walker, Robert Lavender 







NATIONAL URBAN/RURAL FELLOWS MENTORS 
David T. Abbott 
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Cleveland, OH 
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Senior Advisor to the Commissioner 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
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Corona, NY 
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Assistant Administrator 
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New York, NY 


Hon. Tom Bradley 
Mayor 
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Los Angeles, CA 


Ezunial Burts 
Executive Director 
PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
Los Angeles, CA 


Sandra Ruiz Butter 
Executive Director 
TREMONT COMMONWEALTH COUNCIL 
VOCATIONAL INSTRUCTION PROJECT, 
INC. 
Bronx, NY 


Georwe A. Caravalho 
City Manager 
City of Santa Clar ita, CA 


Gladys Carrion 
Commissioner 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
New York, NY 


Hon. Henry Cisneros 
Secretary 
U.S. HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Washington, DC 


Richard Cohen 
Vice Pres1dent of Field Strategies 
LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT CORP. 
New York, NY 


Roser Cohen 
Chief of Sta ff 
PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ 
New York, NY 


Lorraine Cortes-Vazquez 
Executive Director 
ASPIRA OF NEW YORK 
New York, NY 


Karen deBartolome 
Secretary 
PORT AUTHORITY OF NEW YORK & NEW 
JERSEY 
New York, NY 


Michael J. Dowling 
Commissioner 
NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF 
SOCIAL SERVICES 
Albany, NY 


Adolfo Echeveste 
Former Assistant County Manager 
MARICOPA COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 
Phoen ix, AZ 


Barbara Edwards 
Executive Director 
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New York, NY 


Severo Esquivel 
City Manager 
CITY OF SAN DIEGO 
San Diego, CA 


Hon. Fernando Ferrer 
Bronx Borough President 
Bronx, NY 


Patricia Foley 
Senior Vice President of External Affairs 
LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT CORP. 
Washington, DC 


Roy D. Gabriel 
Assistant Secretary 
INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
INDIANA FAMILY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 
ADMINISTRATION 
Indianapolis, IN 


Louis N. Garcia 
City Manager 
CITY OF HAYWARD 
Hayward, CA 


Rosa M. Gil, DSW 
Senior Vice President 
NYC HEALTH & HOSPITAL CORP. 
New York, NY 


Hon. Stephen Goldsmith 
Mayor of Indianapolis, IN 


Wilfredo Gonzalez 
District Director 
U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 
Washington, DC 


Carolyn N. Graham 
Director of Human Services Department 
BROWARD COUNTY 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 


Marlene Hochstadt 
First Deputy Director 
NYC DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION 
Elmhurst, NY 


John Hudacs 
Commissioner 
NY STATE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
Albany, NY 


Dr. Billy E. Jones 
President 
NYC HEALTH & HOSPITALS CORPORA­
TION 
New York, NY 


William Jones 
Vice Pres1dent of Program 
LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT CORPORA­
TION 
New York, NY 


Kenneth J. Knuckles 
Commissioner 
NYC DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 
New York, NY 


Anita Landecker 
Program Vice President 
LOCAL INmAnVES SUPPORT CORPORATION 
Los Angeles, CA 


Edward G. Lloyd 
Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer 
LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT CORP. 
New York, NY 


David Lopez, Ph.D. 
Executive Deputy Administrator 
Intergovernmental Affairs 
HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION 
New York, NY 


Leslie H. Lowe 
Assistant Commissioner of Operations & 
Development 
NYC DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 
New York, NY 


George L. Miles, Jr. . 
Executive Vice President & Ch1ef 
Operating Officer 
WNET!THIRTEEN 
New York, NY 


Blair Nare 
Manager 
WORLD TRADE INSTITUTE 
PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ 
New York, NY 


Erwin J. Odeal 
Executive Director 
NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER 
DISTRICT 
Cleveland , OH 


Jonathan Olken 
Vice President & Director 
Marketing & Development 
WNET(THIRTEEN 
New York, NY 


Roy R. Pedenon 
County Manager 
MARICOPA COUNTY GOVERNMENT 
Phoenix, AZ 


Hon. Cesar A. Perales 
Deputy Mayor 
City of New York, NY 


Paula Petrotta 
Executive Director ON THE 
LOS ANGELES CITY COMMISSION 
STATUS OF WOMEN 
Los Angeles, CA 


Sally Hernandez Pinerio 


~:r::c~t~~ONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
New York, NY 


Benjamin Reyes 


g~;;.r;1~~~f OF GENERAL SERVICES 


Chicago, IL 


John Rhoder 
Acting Executive Director CENTER 
KINGS COUNTY HOSPITAL 
Brooklyn, NY 


Hon. Jeff Richardson 
Secretary OCIAL SERVICES 
INDIANA FAMILY & S 
ADMINISTRATION 
Indianapolis, IN 


Donald A. Robbins 
Director of External and Intergovernmen­
tal Affairs 
NY STATE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL 
SERVICES 
Albany, NY 


Richard W. Roper 
Director 
Office of Business Development 
PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ 
New York, NY 


Sandy Rosenblith 
Senior Vice President 
LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT CORP. 
Washington, DC 


Alan Rosenbult 
Executive Director 
NYC HEALTH & HOSPITALS CORP. 
New York, NY 


Jack Shakely 
Pres1dent 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Los Angeles, CA 


Susan F. Shick 
Director of Community Development 
City of Long Beach, CA 


Lavonne Sheffield-Turner 
Chief of Staff 
MAYOR'S OFFICE 
Cleveland , OH 


Lorraine C. Tregde 
Acting Executive Director 
NYC HEALTH & HOSPITAL CORP. 
New York, NY 


Suzanne Turner 
Director 
Division of Family & Children 
INDIANA FAMILY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 
ADMINISTRATION 
Indianapolis, IN 


Merry Tuten 
President & CEO 
GREATER LOS ANGELES TRADE CENTER 
Los Angeles, CA 


Maryann Ustick 
Director 
CITY OF PHOENIX 
Phoenix, AZ 


Richard Vazquez 
Vice President 
MULTI-PLAN 
New York, NY 


Pete Velez 
Executive Director 
NYCHHC/ELMHURST HOSPITAL CENTER 
Elmhurst, NY 


Peter Waldt 
Vice President of Project Finance 
NY STATE URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORP. 
New York, NY 


Danny R. Williams 
County Administrator 
CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONS 
Cleveland, OH 


Ted Williams 
Acting Assistant County Manager 
MARICOPA COUNTY GOVERNMENT 
HEALTH CARE AGENCY 
Phoenix, AZ 
Robert M. Willis 
Commissioner 
DC INSURANCE COMMISSION 
Washington, DC 


Donald Woods 
Deputy Administrator 
HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION/ 
OFFICE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AFFAIRS 
New York, NY 







NATIONAL URBAN/RURAL FELLOWS 
CUMULATIVE STATISTICAL PROFILE 1969-95 


RACIAL/ETHNIC ORIGIN 


African American ...................... 332 (54.9%) 
Hispanic ................................... 203 (33.0%) 
White ............................................. 33 (5.4%) 
Native American ... ......... ............... 18 (2.9%) 
Asian American ....... ..... ... .............. 20 (3.2%) 
Other ................................................ 4 (0.6o/o) 


Total Fellows ................................. 615 (100o/o) 


GENDER 


Female ............... ......... .... ......... . 294 (47.8%) 
Male ........ ... .. ............... .......... .... 321 (52.2%) 


Tota1 ............................................... 615 (100o/o) 


AGE ON APPLICATION 


Age Range ............ ....... ... ... ... ........ ... .. .. . 24-55 
Ave~age Age Females ....... ............... .. .... . 31.6 
Average Age Males ................................ 34.2 


MEDIAN EDUCATION 


Pre-Fellowship .............................. ........ .... BA 
Post-Fellowship .... .. .......... .... ........... ......... MA 


FELLOWS PRESENT LOCATION BY STATE 


Alabama................................... 4 
~~~:~~: .................................... :::::::::::::::::··; 3 


c l "f ~ ·························· ······· ···· ··· ··· ····· ······ 3 
C~l~~;~la ....... ....................................... ..... 65 
c 0 .. .......................... . ... . ...... .... . . ......... 5 


onnecticut ............................. 6 Delawar ···················· 
. . e ··························· ······ ·· ·· ···· ············ 1 


D1stnct of Columbia 
Florid ·································· 36 
G ~······················································· 19 
H:~!i\a ..................................... .. .. ... ........ .. 14 


················ ···················· 4 lllin i ········· ··········· 


lndi~nsa·::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: ~ 


FELLOWS PRESENT LOCATION BY STATE 
(continued) 


Iowa .......... ... .......... ....................... ... ... ...... ....... 3 
Kentucky ..... .... .. .... .. ...................... .. .. ......... .... .. 1 
Louisiana .. ...... .. ............. ........... .. ...... ............... 3 
Maine .......... .... .... ...... .. .............. ..... .......... ..... ... 2 
Maryland ......... ........... .... ..... ..... .... .. ............... 11 
Massachusetts .................................................. 5 
Michigan ..... ... ........... ....... .... ... ..... ..... ...... ... .... .. 6 
Minnesota ......... ........ ........ .. .... ... ....... ... ......... ... 2 
Mississippi ..... ............ .... ... .. .............. .... ..... .... 10 
Missouri ........................................................... 4 
Nebraska ... ... .... ...... ... .. ... ....... ..... .. ................ .... 1 
Nevada .. ........... ..... .. ............................. .. .... ..... 2 
New jersey ..................................................... 19 
New Mexico .................................................. 15 
New York .................................................... 111 
North Carolina ...... .............. ... ... ..... .. ... ..... .. ... .. 5 
Ohio ............................................................... 25 
Oklahoma .... .............. ... ...... ....... ............ ..... .... . 3 
Oregon ............................................................. 4 
Pennsylvania .. ........... .... .. .... ...... .... .... .. .. .... .... 13 
Tennessee ..... ......... ................ .... .... ..... ... .......... 2 
Texas .............................................................. 16 
Vermont ........................................................... 1 
Virginia .... ..... ... .. .... ... ......... ......... ... ....... .. ..... .. 11 
Washington ................................................... 12 
Wisconsin ........................................................ 3 


Subtotal of Fellows in 39 States and DC ••• 469 


Other: U.S. Territories or Commonwealth, 
Address Unknown, or Deceased 
Puerto Rico ... ...... .. ..... ... ... .. ... ... .... ... .......... ....... 5 
Micronesia ....................................................... 1 
Africa .. .. ..... ... ...... ... ... .. ...... .. ... .... .... .. ... ... .......... 1 
Current Address Unrecorded ...................... 123 
Deceased ..... ............. ...... ............ .. ..... ....... ... .. 1 5 


TOTAL FELLOWS ........................................ 615 


CORPORATE EXECUTIVE FELLOWS 


Expanding the participation of minority executives in the upper levels of 
corporate management and leadership ... 


Begun in 1985, the Corporate Executive Fellows pro­
gram aims at expanding the parti cipation of minority 
executives in the upper levels of corporate management 
and leadership, preparing them for senior-level manage­
ment careers. 


academic program includes courses in business admin­
istration, semmars with corporate Mentors, workshops 
with and lectu res by leading business managers and di­
rectors. Fellows themselves lead peer workshops and 
independent study projects in appropriate topics. 


MENTORSHIP PROGRAM 
The Corporate Executive Fel­
lows program was initiated by 
the leadership and with the fi­
nancial support of Columbia 
Business School, Stanford Gradu­
ate School of Business , The 
Equitable Life Insurance Co., and 
National Urban Fellows, Inc. 
Further participation and support 
came from such outstanding 
firms as American Airlines, Bank 
of America, the Chase Manhat­
tan Corporation, Chemical New 
York Corporation, First Boston 
Corporation, The Henley League, 
Ltd., Hewlett-Packard Company, 
Time Warner, Inc. and The john 
D. and Catherine T. MacArthur 
Foundation. 


CORPORATE 
EXECUTIVE 


If the knowledge that derives 
from formal education is in­
valuable, the knowledge drawn 
from experience is essential. 


The hallmark of the Corporate 
Executive Fellows program, like 
that of the other National Ur­
ban Fellows, Inc., programs, is 
assignment to a Mentor. Fellows 
work directly with senior corpo­
rate executives who have the 
capability and the commitment 
to engage in an intensive learn­
ing relationship. During the 
Mentorship, Fellows have staff 
responsibilities and are directly 
supervised by the Mentor or are 
assigned to an appropriate depart­
ment associate. PROGRAM DESIGN 


The Corporate Executive Fellows program, lasting twenty-four 
to thirty months, identifies qualified professionals who ex­
hibit the skills, development capacity, and commitment to 
assume high levels of responsibility in the business com­
munity. 


Fellows are provided an opportunity to earn a Master of 
Business Administration degree from Columbia Univer­
sity Graduate School of Business or Stanford's Graduate 
School of Business. A Mentorship component offers Fel­
lows the opportunity to work directly with senior 
corporate executives who function as teacher, guide, and 
role model. 


ACADEMIC PROGRAM 


Two major academic institutions provide the academic 
component of the Corporate Executive Fellowship Pr?­
gram, which leads to the MBA ~egree: Columb1a 
University Graduate School of Bus.mess and S~anf~rd 
University Graduate School of Bu~me~s: Each mstltu­
tion contributes SO% of the Fellow s tUition costs. 


Both are designed to prepare students for senior-level 
management careers in busines~ and to allow for a broad 
exposure to management pract1ces. 


A curriculum of core and elective courses integrates the 
theoretical with the practical applications ofbusiness 
management. Fellows l.e~rn to ana!yze problems, weigh 
alternatives, make dec1s1ons, and 1mplement them. Tne 


While the Mentor's leadership style and responsibilities vary 
from individual to individual and from corporation to corpora­
tion, each shares a willingness to put the Fellow to work in the real 
business of the corporation. Mentors serve as teachers, trusted 
counselors, and role models. Their responsibilities are to: 


• Assign the Fellow to a significant job with tasks that are 
related to the Mentor's operations; 


• Allot sufficient time to provide the Fellow with feed­
back regarding job performance and design strategies 
in accomplishing assigned tasks; 


• Admit the Fellow into the department's inner circle of 
decision makers; 


• Assist the Fellow in the professional development and 
career growth appropriate to the corporation 's culture 
and poficies. 


The Mentor and Fellow periodically assess the develop­
ment of the learning relationship with the Fellowship 
Program Director to insure the maximum mutual benefit 
for both the Mentor's organization and the Fellow's de­
velopment. 


A full I isting of the Corporate Executive Fellows can be 
found in the Biographies/Directory (available on request) 
which also lists the Fellows in other National Urban Fel­
lows, Inc., programs. A list of current Mentors and their 
corporate affiliations concludes this Report. 







CORPORATE EXECUTIVE FELLOWS 


CLASS OF 1995 AND 1996 


(Top - left to right) Matthew B. Brown, Columbia Business School; Julio Ruiz-Gomez, Columbia 
Bustness School ; E. Miguel Rossy, Columbia Business School 


(Bottom - left to right) Steven Pamon, Stanford Graduate School of Business· Rafael Ortiz Stanford 
Graduate School of Business ' ' 


CORPORATE EXECUTIVE FELLOWS MENTORS------


Marilda Alfonso 
Vice President 
REALTY INVESTMENTS 
AETNA INVESTMENT GROUP 
Hartford, CT 


Bruce Barone 
Vice President 
FINANCIAL PLANNING 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 
Atlanta, GA 


Allison Coolbrlth 
General Manager 
AETNA LIFE & CASUALTY 
Walnut Creek, CA 


Mary Ann Cusenza 
Treasurer 
CORPORATE TREASURY 
APPLE COMPUTER, INC. 
Cupertino, CA 


Eric Hanlem 
Vice President 


APPLE COMPUTER, INC. 
Cupertino, CA 


George Kalkines 
Senior Partner 
KALKINES, ARKY, ZALL & BERNSTEIN 
New York, NY 


William McCaffny 
Executive Vice Prestdent 
THE EQUITABLE 
New York, NY 


Jeff Pantages 
Managing Director 
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT GROUP 
THE PRUDENTIAL 
Newark, NJ 


Bob Roath 
Vtce President and Corporate 
Controller 
RJR NABISCO, INC. 
New York , NY 


Shane Robison 
Director 
ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY GROUP 
APPLE COMPUTER, INC. 
Cupertino, CA 


Peter Shapiro 
Vice President 


CITICORP SECURITIES MARKETS, INC. 
New York, NY 


John Stagland 
Vice Prestdent 
PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT 
PACIFIC TELESIS GROUP 
San Roman, CA 


Richard J. all 
Managing Partner 
STERLING HEALTH CAPITAL 
MANAGEMENT, INC. 
New York , NY 







CORPORATE EXECUTIVE FELLOWS 
CUMULATIVE STATISTICAL PROFILE 1985-1996 


RACIAL/ETHNIC ORIGIN 


African American ..... .. ............................... 16 (45.7%) 
Hispanic ............................... ..................... 19 (54 .3%) 


Total Fellows .................................................. 35 (100°/0 ) 


GENDER 


Females ..... ... ............ .. .............. ................ . 12 (34.3%) 
Males ............ .. ........................... ................ 23 (65.7o/o) 


Total Fellows .................................................. 35 (100°/0 ) 


AGE ON APPLICATION 


Age Range ............ ... ..... ... .................... ............. 22 _ 33 
Average Age Males .. ..... ... .. .. ........ ........................ 25.9 
Average Age Females ... ............. .. .. .. ..... ............. .. . 25.7 
Average Age Overall ....... .................. .... ........ ...... 25.8 


STATE OR COMMONWEALTH OF RECRUITMENT 


Arizona ....... .. ......... .......... ....... ... ....... .. ..... ..... .... .. ...... 2 
California .. .. .... .. .......... ..... ..... .. .... ... ................ .... ... .. .. 9 
Colorado ............. .. ... .. .... ........ ... .... ... .............. ..... ...... 1 
Connecticut ......... .. .. .... .......... ... ................................ 1 
Delaware ...... ....................................... ..... ... .. .......... . 1 


~~~~~~~:::::::::: : :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: ::: :::: ~ 
Maryland ............................................. ....... .. ......... ... 1 
Massachusetts ............. ................... ........... .... ... .. .. ..... 3 
New York .................................... .............................. 9 
New jersey .............. ....... ... ........ ... .... ..... ... ............ ... .. 3 
Pennsylvania ....... ..... ..... ..... ... ...... ... ........ ....... ......... .. 1 


~~r~~iaR~~~.:: :::: :::::::::::::::: ::::: :::::::::::::: ::::::::: ::::::::::::: ~ 
Total Fellows in 14 States/Commonwealth .............. 35 


ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & MANAGEMENT FELLOWS---
Enhancing the participation of traditionally underrepresented groups in the upper 


levels of environmental management and science leadership ... 


A unique program combining intense academic study and 


professional experience in the administrative, technical , 


and scientific areas of environmental management and 


protection , the Environmental Science and Management 


Fellowship is targeted to individuals who bring cultu ral 


diversity to the discipline. 


Fellows of this unique program will 


become a source of leadership in the 


areas of environmental protection, 


conservation, and management. 


Tufts Univer ty's faculty and the staff and alumni(ae) of 


National Ur Jan Fellows, Inc. 


ACADEMIC PROGRAM 


The academic component of the ESMF program is ad­


ministered by Tufts University's Department of Civil and 


The goal of the Environmental Science 


and Management Fellows program is to 


develop an ethnically and culturally 


diverse leadership in environmental 


research and policy making. Emerg­


ing issues such as "environmental 


racism" and emerging institutions 


such as NAFT A and GATT make this 


an especially timely and important 


program. 
Linda E. Alexander; Director 


Environmental Engineering in coop­


eration with its Department of Urban 


and Environmental Policy. Fellows 


must satisfactorily complete ten 


courses to fulfill the requirements of 


the Master of Science Degree. These 


courses consist of a core of five defining 


the multidisciplinary focus of environ­


mental science and management; four 


electives in environmental science, 


technology, health, and policy; and 


a master's project. A non-credit in­


troductory summer program and a 


colloquium also are required . The 


five core courses provide a blend of 


environmental principles , knowl-


PROGRAM DESIGN 


The Environmental Science and Management Fellows 


program, begun in 1991, combines a full-time, two year 


course of study leading to a Master of Science degree 


from Tufts University. This includes a twelve-month 


mentorship assignment under the direction of an out­


standing environmental scientist/administrator as special 


assistant on projects of critical importance to the spon­


soring organization. 


Through vigorous outreach and recruitment, the Environ­


mental Science and Management Fellowship identifies 


mid-career professionals in the public and private sec­


tors who exhibit the skills, capacity, interest, and 


commitment to assume high levels of responsibility in 


the environmental community. Admission to the fellow­


ship is determined through a selection process shared by 


edge, and tools in the areas of 


ecology, law, decision making and administration, risk 


and technology assessment, program and project man­


agement, and economics, as follows: 


• Environmental Management 


• Health Effects and Risk Assessment 


• Applied Ecology or Population and Community 


Ecology 


and one of the following: 


• Hazardous Materials Management 


• Environmental Law 


• Environmental Economics 


The four electives are drawn from courses in the areas of 
Environmental Science, Biology, Civil Engineering, and 


Chemistry. 







Fellows also participate in a noncredit Colloquium in 


Environmental Science and Management, a weekly fo­


rum on a broad range of environmental issues. Finally, 


Fellows must complete the Master's project, a group 


response to real world environmental problems 


submitted by local corporations, governments, and 


community-based organizations. The project culminates 


in an oral presentation and a scholarly work of an 


applied nature, written to integrate the academic experi­


ences with a practical application. 


In addition, Fellows are encouraged to participate in a vari­


ety of other environmental programs offered by Tufts 


University, such as the Forum of the Hazardous Materials 


Management program, the annual New England Environmen­


tal Conference, a symposium sponsored by the International 


Environmental Policy Program of the Fletcher School of Law 


and Diplomacy and the Department of Urban and Environ­


mental Policy, a lecture series sponsored by the Center for 


Environmental Management, and the graduate student chap­


ter of the National Association of Environmental Professionals. 


MENTOR PROGRAM 


Like all National Urban Fellows, Inc., programs, the En­


vironmental Science and Management Fellows program 


is based on the premise that knowledge drawn from ex­


perience is an essential component of learning. Therefore, 


the program features an intensive, twelve-month 


mentorship during which Fellows work directly with out­


standing environmental scientists and administrators. 


A Fellow's background, skills, and professional objec­


tives are evaluated and closely matched with mentorship 


assignments to provide the greatest possible development 


opportunity for the Fellow and the greatest possible as­


set to the sponsoring agency. 


The Mentor's role as a teacher, guide, and role model is 


fundamental to the program's goal of developing effec­


tive environmental leaders. The Mentor provides the Fellow 


with feedback regarding job performance and strategies for 


accomplishing assigned tasks. The Mentor, the Fellow, 


and ESMF program staff periodically assess the develop­


ment of the learning relationship from both the 


standpoints of the Fellow and the Mentor's organization. 


A full listing of the Environmental Science and Manage­


ment Fellows can be found in the Biographies/Directory 


(available on request) which also lists the Fellows in other 


National Urban Fellows, Inc., programs. A list of current 


Mentors and their affiliations concludes this Report. 


ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & MANAGEMENT FELLOWS ---


CLASS OF 1996 


t 


(Top- left to right) Carlos Alicea, John Chavez, Thomas Cowling, lan Ewusi-Wilson 
(Bottom - left to right) LaVerne Parris, Daniel Pena, Patricia Reed 


CLASS OF 1995 


(Top- left to right) Lois Adams, Sharon Beard, Magalie Brevi lie, Sheila Davidson 
(Bottom - left to right) Vincia Holloman, joan Mitchell , Marcia Rose 


LINDA E. ALEXANDER 
Program Director 


ANN RAPPAPORT, Ph .D. 
Academic Program Director 







ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & MANAGEMENT 
FELLOWS MENTORS 


Robert Alpern 
Acting Director 
Office of Natural Resources 
NEW YORK CITY DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Corona, NY 


Jerry N. Blancato, Ph.D. 
Research Biologist 
Environmental Monitoring Systems 
Laboratory 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Las Vegas, NV 


John C. Chamberlin 
Director 
Office of Administration 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


Thome W. Chambers 
Director 
Employee Participation and Communication 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


Harry Freeman, Ph.D. 
Chief 
POLLUTION PREVENTION RESEARCH BRANCH 
RISK REDUCTION ENGINEERING 
LABORATORY 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Cincinnat i, OH 


James D. Giattina 
Deputy Director 
GREAT LAKES NATIONAL PROGRAM OFFICE 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Ch icago, IL 


Christopher Grundler 
Director 
GREAT LAKES NATIONAL PROGRAM OFFICE 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Ch icago, IL 


Thomas L. Hadd 
Deputy Director 
OFFICE OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washi ngton, DC 


Penelope Hansen 
Director 
INNOVATIVE TECHNOLOGY PROGRAMS 
OFFICE OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


Thomas M. Hellman, Ph.D. 
VIce Prestdent 
ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB COMPANY 
New York, NY 


Stephen L. Johnson 
Director 
FIELD OPERATIONS DIVISION 
OFFICE OF PESTICIDE PROGRAMS 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


Nicholas Lailas 
Chief 
RADIATION ASSESSMENT BRANCH 
RADIATION STUDIES BRANCH 
OFFICE OF RADIATION AND INDOOR AIR 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington , DC 


Patricia L. Meaney 
Deputy Regional Administrator 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Boston , MA 


Kenneth Olden, Ph.D. 
Director 
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
SCIENCES 
Research Triangle Park, NC 


E. Timothy Oppelt 
Director 
RISK REDUCTION ENGINEERING LABORATORY 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Cincinnati , OH 


Joseph R. Pinto, Ph.D. 
Research Scientist 
OFFICE OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
ATMOSPHERIC RESEARCH AND EXPOSURE ASSESSMENT 
LABORATORY 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Research Triangle Park, NC 


Peter W. Preuss 
Director 
OFFICE OF SCIENCE, PLANNING, REGULATORY 
EVALUATION 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


Frank T. Princiotta 
Director 
AIR AND ENERGY ENGINEERING, RESEARCH LA BORA TORY 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Research Tr iangle Park, NC 


Rosemarie C. Russo, Ph.D. 
Director 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESEARCH LABORATORY 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Athens, GA 


Richard Sanderson 
Director 
OFFICE OF FEDERAL ACTIVITIES 
OFFICE OF ENFORCEMENT 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


David Scott Smith 
Chie f 
POLICY AND RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT, SAFETY, 
HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


Kathy Veit 
Chief 
PROGRAM COORDINATION BRANCH 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Seattle, WA 


ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & MANAGEMENT FELLOWS 
STATISTICAL PROFILE CL~SS OF 1991-1996--------


GENDER .... . 19 (S 7.6% ) 
Female.. ............ .. ... ..... ....... .. ... .. ... ......... .. 


14 
(
42


.4%) 
Male .... ... ... ... ........ .. ..... ..... ...... ... .. .... ....... . 


RACIAL/ETHNIC ORIGIN 
. . . ... .. 21 (63 .6%) Afncan-Amencan ... ........... .... .......... .. . . 


. . . .. .... .. 4 (12 .1%) H1span1c .. ...... ....... ............ .. .... .. ... .... ··· ) 


Native-American ... ....... ..... ... .... ... .. ...... .. ..... . 4 02 ·1% 


White ·· ····· ·:······ ·········· ··· ·· ··· ···· ··· ·· ·· ···· ······ .. ·· ·· ··: ~ ~~~~ 
Asian-Amencan ... .. ......... ... .... ...... . .... ... ... ... ... . . 


STATE/COMMONWEALTH OF RECRUITMENT 


~~~~~~ l 
District of Columbia .. .. .... ... ..... .... ... .... .. .. .... .... ..... .. ... ... 


1 
~:~::ch~~~~~· :::: : :::: : :: :: : : ::: : ::: :: ::: : : :::: : : :: : ::::::::::: :: :: :: :: ::: ~ 


·· ··················· 


j~~~~lo 1 
South Carolina. ....... ... .... .. ............ ... .. .. .. .. ... ... 1 


~~~i~i~~~~ ·:::::: : ::::::: : ::: :: :::: : :: ::::: : :: ::::::::: :: :::: : :: ::: ::: ::: ::: 1 


GEOGRAPHIC REGION 
16 


~:r:.~.~.~~. :::::::::::::: : ::::: : ::: ::: :::::: :: :::::::: : : : ::::::: : :::::::::::: .. : 
··········· ·· ·········· South .. .. .... .. .... . ......... ....... .. .... .... ....... ... 4 


Southwest .. ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. .. · .... · .... · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·...... 2 
....... ......... .. ..... Midwest.... ...... . .. .. ........... ... ... .. .. ........ .. 1 
····· ··············· ··· U .S. Territory ............... ... ...... .. .......... .. . 


EDUCATION 2 


~~~~~~;s·:::::::::::::::: : :: :: ::::::: : ::::::::::: : ::::::::::::::::: : :::::::·31 
MEDIAN AGE ................................. _. ....................... 32 


TOTAL FELLOWSHIPS AWARDED······-················ 33 







--


FINANCIAL REPORT--------------


INCOME 


Support for the program of National Urban Fellows, Inc., for fiscal year 1993-94 
came predominantly from three sources. Mentor organizations contributed 36%; 
foundations and corporations together provided 33%; 30% came from Federal 
government contracts. The remaining 1% derived from individual contributions 
and interest earnings . The Income pie chart illustrates the relative proportion of 
each source. 


The individual gift campaign continued for the sixth year. We are very gratified 
by the generosity and commitment demonstrated by National Urban/Rural Fel­
low graduates with first-hand experience with the program. 


In addition to cash contributions, we received a substantial in-kind contribu­
tion . The Bernard M . Baruch College of New York continued its support of 
National Urban Fellows Inc. program. Similarly, Columbia University and 
Stanford University provided a 50% tuition and fee waiver for the Corporate 
Executive Fellows Program. Tufts University provided a tuition reduction for 
the Environmental Science and Management Fellows. 


M. GNANA SEKARAN 
Controller 


Other significant in-kind contributions came from American Airlines. 


EXPENSE (9/30/94) 


MENTORS INCOME (9/30/94) 
36.3%\ 


't. 
OTHER 


.8% 


EXPENSES 


The Expense pie chart shows the proportions 
of expenditures incurred by the activities of 
National Urban Fellows, Inc., for fiscal year 
1993-94. Program-related expenses were 88% 
of the total; administration and fundraising ac­
counted for 7% and 5% respectively . 


GROWTH OVER FIVE YEARS 


As the Income bar chart illustrates, National 
Urban Fellows, Inc., has increased its revenues 
over the last five years to more than two mil­
lion dollars. Mentor contributions continue to 
provide the financial base built upon by foun­
dation and corporate grants and federal 
contracts. 


The Expense chart for 1990-94 shows that the 
major portion of expenditures reflects direct 
program costs . Administrative expenses de­
creased in the same period as staff in some 
programs were consolidated. 


National Urban Fellows, Inc., has sought suc­
cessfully to maintain a strong financial position 
while sustaining quality programs and promot­
ing organizational growth. The results of these 
efforts can be seen in the bar chart, Changes in 
Income and Fund Balances. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION-----


Year ended Septem!Jer 30, 1994 
with comparative totals for 1993 


with Report of Independent Audilon 


i!J ERNST & YouNG LLP 







REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS 


NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 


W
e have audited the accompanying balance sheet of National Urban Fellows, Inc. (the 
"Organization") as of September 30, 1994, and the related statements of support, revenue and 
expenses and changes in fund balances, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial 


statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 


We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of National Urban Fellows, Inc. at September 30, 1994, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 


December 23 , 1994 


NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 
BALANCE SHEET 


September 3~ 1994 with comparative totals for 1993 


1994 
I Unrestricted Restricted TOTAL 


Assets 


Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 


$ 317,006 $ 485,563 (Note 6) $ 168,557 


Certificates of deposit 152,158 152,158 


Receivables: 
Mentors 568,200 568,200 


Foundations and corporations 18,000 90,327 108,327 


Government agencies (Note 7) 26,000 176,687 202,687 


Prepaid expenses and other assets 88.895 88.895 


Total current assets 212,557 1,393,273 1,605,830 


Fixed assets: 
224,692 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 99,317 125,375 


Leasehold improvements 34.883 34.883 


134,200 125,375 259,575 


Less accumulated depreciation 
104.754 203.749 and amortization 98,995 


Net fixed assets 35,205 20,621 55,826 


Security deposits 12,857 12,857 
$ 1.674.513 Total Assets $260.619 $ 1.413.894 


Liabilities and fund balances 


Current liabilities: 
$ 78,248 $ 78,248 


Accrued education expenses $ 
55,702 55,702 


Other accrued I iabi I ities 
1,l 52,3l3 1.259,323 


Deferred support and revenue 
1,393,273 1,393,273 


Total current liabilities 


Commitments (Note 4) 


Fund balances 260,619 l0,6l 1 281.240 


s 1!~13!82~ s 1.674.513 
Total liabilities and fund balances s l60!612 


See accompanying notes. 


1993 
TOTAL I 


$ 564,029 


40,270 


718,500 
151,103 
108,439 


55.324 


1,637,665 


224,692 
34.883 


259,575 


174.063 
85,512 


12.857 
$ 1.736.034 


$ 11 0,058 
56,460 


1.321.945 
1,488,463 


247.571 
$ 1.736.034 







• 


NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 
STATEMENT OF SUPPORT, REVENUE 
AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES----


Year ended September 3~ I 994 with comparative totals for I 993 


1994 1993 
Unrestricted Restricted TOTAL TOTAL 


Support and revenue (Note 2) 
Support: 


Mentors $ $ 845,290 $ 845,290 $ 968,507 
Foundations and corporations 235,500 377,300 612,800 620,541 
Government agencies (Note 7) 31.497 §03,010 f!3~.5oz 620,030 


266,997 1,825,600 2,092,597 2,209,078 


Revenue: 
Application fees and other 4,480 4,480 6,460 
Interest and other income 12.364 12,3{!~ 13,808 


Total support and revenue 283,841 1,825,600 2,109,441 2,229,346 


Expenses (Note 2) 
Program expenses 145,771 1,671,941 1,817,712 1,961,443 
General and administrative 32,769 120,091 152,860 166,116 
Fund-raising 50,9Z4 5~,22§ 105,200 121,157 
Total expenses 229,514 1,8~§,258 2.0Z5,ZZ~ 2,248,716 


Excess (deficiency) of support 
and revenue over expenses 54,327 (20,658) 33,669 (19,370) 


Fund balances, beginning of year 180,289 67,282 247,571 266,941 
Fund transfer ~6.003 (~6.003} 
Fund balances, end of year s ~60~612 S ~0!6Z1 s ~81!~~0 $ 247,,271 


See accompanying notes. 


NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-----------


Year ended September 3~ I 994 with comparative totals for I 993 


1994 1993 
Unrestricted Restricted TOTAL TOTAL 


OPERATING ACTIVITIES 


Excess (deficiency) of support 
$ (20,658) $ 33,669 $ (19,370) and revenue over expenses $ 54,327 


Adjustments to reconcile excess 
(deficiency) of support and revenue 
over expenses to net cash provided 
(used) by operating activities: 


35,613 
Depreciation and amortization 9,028 20,658 29,686 


Changes in operating assets 
and liabilities: 


Decrease (increase) in receivables 47,250 51,578 98,828 (1 88,607) 


(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (33,571) (33,571) 10,552 


(Decrease) increase in accrued 
(31,810) (31,810) 59,498 


education expenses 


(Decrease) increase in other accrued 
(758) (758) 14,875 


liabilities 


(Decrease) increase in deferred 
(62,622) (62,622) 210,781 


support and revenue 


Transfer from restricted to unrestricted 26,003 GZf!,003} 
142.712 (82,528} (24Z} 


Total adjustments 82,281 123,342 
Net cash provided (used) by operations 136,608 (]03,186} 33,422 


Investing activities 3,025 
Disposals of furniture, fixtures and equipment 


(]]] ,888} (] J 1,888} (837} 
Net purchases of certificates of deposit 


(] ]] ,888} (] 11 ,888} ~ 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 


Net increase (decrease) in cash 
(215,074) (78,466) 125,530 


and cash equivalents 136,608 43~t422 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3],242 53~.080 564.022 


$ 564.029 S 31Z.006 1485.563 
Cash and each equivalents, end of year I168.55Z 


See accompanying notes . 







NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---------


September 3~ 1994 


1. ORGANIZATION 


National Urban Fellows, Inc. ("NUFI") is an organiza­
tion whose goal is to identify and train men and women, 
especially members of minority groups, for leadership 
positions in the administration of urban and rural com­
munities and in the private sector. NUFI is an independent 
not-for-profit institution incorporated in 1 97 4 under the 
laws of the State of Connecticut. NUFI operates an ad­
ministrative office in New York City. 


NUFI offers a thirteen-month postgraduate program, the 
National Urban Rural Fellowship program ("NURF") 
which consists of a two-month education program, fol­
lowed by a nine-month assignment as a Special Assistant 
to an urban or rural administrator (a Mentor) and a final 
two-month education program. The program receives the 
major portion of its continuing support from mentors, 
corporations, foundations and alumni. 


NUFI also offers a Corporate Executive Fellowship pro­
gram ("CEF"). This is a two-year program in which 
participants earn a Master in Business Administration at 
Columbia University or Stanford University while obtain­
ing "on-the-job" experience working with the management 
personnel (Mentors) of major companies. 


Additionally, NUFI offers an Environmental Science and 
Management Fellowship program ("ESMF") largely sup­
ported by a grant received from the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency. This is a two-year program in which 
participants earn a Master of Science Degree from Tufts 
University while obtaining "on-the-job" experience work­
ing with key executives and scientists (Mentors) within 
the en vi ron mental protection/conservation community. 


2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 


Recognition of Contributions Receivable, Revenue and 
Deferred Revenue 
Mentor contributions, which are restricted, are recorded 
as receivable and deferred support and revenue when 
NUFI places a fellow with a Mentor. The deferred sup­
port and revenue is recognized as revenue as mentorship 
expenses are incurred. The collectibility of the entire 
mentor receivable is dependent upon a fellow remain­
ing with a mentor for the entire mentorship period. 


Unrestricted contributions from foundations and corpora­
tions are recorded as receivable and revenue when granted. 
Restricted contributions are recorded as receivable and 


deferred support and revenue when granted and recog­
nized as revenue as expenses related to the restricted 
purpose are incurred. 


Support from government agencies consists of reimburse­
ments for expenses incurred in accordance with the terms 
of grants with the government agencies. Such reimburse­
ments are recognized as support when the related 
expenses are billed to the government agencies. 


Revenues and expenses are recorded in an equivalent 
amount, at estimated fair market value, when gifts-in­
kind are used by NUFI. In 1994, NUFI received an in-kind 
contribution from American Airlines of approximately 
$50,000 in airline ticket credits. 


Cash and Cash Equivalents 
NUFI considers all highly liquid investments purchased 
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equiva­
lents. 


Fixed Assets, Depreciation and Amortization 
Fixed assets are recorded at cost, if purchased, or at esti­
mated fair market value, if donated. 


Depreciation of furniture, fixtures and equipment is cal­
cul.ated using the straight-line method over their ten-year 
estimated useful lives. Computer equipment purchased 
or donated subsequent to October 1, 1987 is being de­
preciated over five years. 


Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight­
lme method over the lesser of their estimated useful I ives 
or the remaining term of the lease. 


Allocation of Expenses 
Salaries, fringe benefits, staff travel and other expenses 
are allocated to program, general and administrative and 
fund-raising expense categories in proportion to time 
worked and travel incurred in activities related to each 
category. 


Presentation 


~he 1993 financial information is presented for compara­
t~ve p~rposes only and is not intended to be a complete 
fmanc1al statement presentation. 


3. TAXES 


NUFI i~ a Section 501 (c)(3) organization exempt from 
federal mcome taxes under Section 509(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and has been classified as a publicly 


supported charitable organization. As such, NUFI quali­
fies for the maximum charitable contribution deduction 
by donors. 


As a not-for-profit organization, NUFI is also exempt 
from state and local income and sales taxes. 


4. COMMITMENTS 


NUFI leases office space in New York City under an op­
erating lease which expires in April 2002. The lease 
provides for minimum annual rental payments of ap­
proximately $65,000 until April 1996 and $77,000 
annually for the remainder of the lease. Base rental pay­
ments are subject to escalation for NUFI's proportionate 
share of increases in building operating expenses. Rent 
expense for 1994 was approximately $86,000 


NUFI is committed, subject to fellows continued par­
ticipation in the programs, to disburse fellowship 
sti~ends amounting to approximately $575,000 and edu­
cation costs of approximately $1 78,000 ratably over its 
programs in the 1995 fiscal year. 


5. THRIFT PLAN 


NUFI has established a thrift plan for the benefit of em­
ploye:s meeting certain eligibility requirements. NUFI 
contnbutes 5% of an employee's annual wage and 
matches 50% of an employee's voluntary contribution 
(to a maximum employee contribution of 4%) . The total 
expense under the plan amounted to approximately 
$26,000 in fiscal 1994 and $25,000 in fiscal 1993. 


6. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 


F.ina.n.cial instruments which potentially subject NUFI to 
Significant concentration of credit risk consist principally 
of the uninsured portions of cash and cash equivalents. 
~UF~ maintains its cash and cash equivalents in two ma­
JOr fmancial institutions located in New York City. 
Ap~roximately 76% of cash and cash equivalents is de­
posited at one of these financial institutions. 


7· INDIRECT COST RATE 


~n .December 23, 1994, the U.S. Environmental Pro­
ectlfon Agency ("EPA") approved an 8% indirect cost 
rate orNUFI ff · 93 NUFI . e .ect.lve retroactively to january 23, 19 . 


. Incurred md1rect costs of $26 000 relating to the 
~;~~~from janu~ry 23, 1993 thro~gh Septemb~r 30, 
of $


26 
nd, accordmgly, recognized accounts rece1vable 


$
26 


,OOQ from the EPA and unrestricted revenue of 
,ooo in fiscal 1994. 


8. ACCOUNTING FOR CONTRIBUTIONS AND FINAN­
CIAL STATEMENT DISPLAY 


In june 1994, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
116, Accounting for Contributions Received and 
Contnbutions Made ("SFAS 116"), and Statement of Fi­
nancial Accounting Standards No. 117, Financial 
Statements of Not-for Profit Organizations ("SFAS 117"). 


SFAS 116 establishes standards of accounting for contri­
butions and applies to all entities that receive or make 
contributions. Among other essentials, SFAS 116 requires 
contributions received and unconditional promises to 
contribute to be recognized as support in the period re­
ceived at their fair values. Conditional promises to give 
are to be recognized when they become unconditional; 
that is, when the conditions are substantially met. 


SFAS 117 establishes broad standards for reporting 
information in general-purpose external financial state­
ments issued by not-for-profit organizations, and requires 
that all not-for-profit organizations provide a statement 
of financial position, a statement of activities, and a state­
ment of cash flows that focus on the entity as a whole. 
Amounts related to an organization's financial position and 
activities are to be reported in three classes of net assets­
permanently restricted, temporarily restricted and 


unrestricted. 


SFAS 116 and 117 will be effective for NUFI's fiscal year 
ending September 30, 1996, although earlier implemen­
tation may occur. NUFI has not yet determined the impact 
of SFAS 116 on its financial position or results of opera­
tions nor the impact of SFAS 117 on the presentation of 


its financial statements. 







NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES 


Year ended September 3~ I 994 with comparative totals for I 993 


PROGRAM COSTS INDIRECT COSTS 1994 1993 


NURF CEF ESMF I Admin. Dev. ll Total II Total I 
Fellowship expenses 
Stipends $ 3921600 $ 801000 $ 2861625 $ $ $ 759,225 $ 7541040 
Moving expenses 31777 21155 11290 7,222 71232 
Travel expenses 241592 21646 161923 44,161 271565 
Education 1001778 1621539 7511 OS 338,422 3181660 
Recruitment 171185 22 181610 35,817 281257 
Mid-year conference 161791 81100 24,891 431959 
Site visits 579 11993 31380 5,952 101762 
Depreciation expense 20.658 - 20.658 25.751 - - -
Total fellowship expenses 556.302 270.013 410.033 ---- 1.236,348 1.216.226 


Administrative expenses 
Staff salaries 1581525 31 1489 1571760 441390 541973 447,137 5011321 
Staff benefits 421648 81217 441144 141050 121752 121,811 142,496 
Consultants/temporary staff 41450 31228 7,678 48,416 
Staff travel 151343 41108 181171 41080 151550 57,252 1101055 
Occupancy costs 21 1386 21,453 25,726 171161 85,726 821577 
Telephone 31032 11135 31017 41719 1,498 13,401 141014 
Stationery 11107 136 11484 578 262 3,567 11 1063 
Printing 31561 11147 61962 2,588 11536 15,794 351596 
Business insurance 71176 7,176 11 1670 
Legal and audit 131020 11 1393 24,413 191345 
Postage/messengers 31217 11069 31781 31311 11019 12,397 201331 
Dues and memberships 522 252 774 170 
Subscript ions 11407 240 11648 3,295 21903 
Deprec iation expense 91028 9,028 91862 
N U F Board expenses 181780 18,780 11 1420 
Equ ipment rental 41778 686 5,464 11370 
M iscellaneous 2,242 1!D 223 1.472 197 S,7J1 2,881 
Total administrative expenses 257.225 47 724 272,Q15 152.82Q 105.200 Dl2d2~ 1,Q32.49Q 
Total expenses $ 81 3.227 $ 31 7,73 7 $ 282.Q48 $ 152,82Q $ 1 05,20Q $ 2,075,772 $2.248.716 


NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC./FINANCIAL SUPPORTERS 
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1993-1995 


CORPORATIONS & FOUNDA liONS 
AMERICAN AIRLINES 
Dallas/Fort Worth, TX 


AMERICAN EXPRESS FOUNDATION 
New York, NY 


AMERICAN HOME PRODUCTS 
CORPORATION 
Madison, NJ 


ANHEUSER-BUSCH COMPANIES, INC. 
New York, NY 


AT&T FO UNDATION 
New York, NY 


CHASE MANHATIAN BANK 
New York, NY 


CHEMICAL BANK 
New York, NY 


CHEVRON CORPORATION 
San Francisco, CA 


CITIBANK, N.A. 
New York, NY 


THE CLEVELAND FOUNDATION 
Cleveland, O H 


THE COCA COLA FOUNDATION 
Atlanta , GA 


COMMUNITY SERVICE SOCIETY OF NY 
New York, NY 


CON EDISON 
New York , NY 


COORS BREWING COMPANY 
Edison, NJ 


DELOITIE & TOUCHE 
New York , NY 


EXXON CORPORATION 
Irving, TX 


THE FORD FOUNDATION 
New York , NY 


FOUNDATION FOR THE MILKEN FAMILIES 
New York, NY 


GE FOUNDATION 
New York, NY 


THE GEORGE GUND FOUNDATION 
Cleveland, OH 


HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN OF GREATER 
NEW YORK 
New York , NY 


JOHNSON & JOHNSON 
New Brunswick, NJ 


LILLy ENDOWMENT 
Indianapolis, IN 


~~HUNNDD . & CATHERINE T. MacARTHUR 
ATION 


Chicago, IL 


MERRILL LYNCH & CO. FOUNDATION, INC. 
New York, NY 


METROPOLITAN LIFE FOUNDATION 
New York, NY 


MUTUAL OF AMERICA 
New York, NY 


NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SECU RITIES 
PROFESSIONALS 
New York, NY 


PFIZER, INC. 
New York, NY 


PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC. 
New York, NY 


TIME WARNER, INC. 
New York, NY 


XEROX FOUNDATION 
Stamford, CT 


NATIONAL URBAN/RURAL 
FELLOWS MENTOR CONTRIBUTORS 
ASPIRA OF NY, INC. 
New York, NY 


ASSOCIATED BLACK CHARITIES (ABC) 
New York, NY 


BROWARD COUNTY (HUMAN SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT) 
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 


CITY OF CHICAGO, IL 
(Department of General Services) 


CITY OF CLEVELAND, OH 
(Mayor ' s Office) 


CITY OF LONG BEACH, CA 
(O ff ice o f Commun ity Development) 


CITY OF PHOENIX, AZ 
(Department of Neighborhood Servi ces) 


CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS 
Cleveland , OH 


D .C. DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER & 
REGULATORY AFFAIRS 
Washington, DC 


D .C. INSURANCE COMMISSION 


Washington, DC 


HISPANIC POLICY DEVELOPMENT 


PROJECT 
New Yo rk , NY 


LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT 
CORPORATION (USC) 


Chicago, IL 


LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT CORPORATION 


(USC) 
New York, NY 


LOCAL INITIATIVES SUPPORT CORPORATION 
(LISC) 
Washington, DC 


MULTI-PLAN, INC. 
New York , NY 


NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER 
DISTRICT 
Cleveland , OH 


NYC DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION 
New York , NY 


NYC DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 
New York, NY 


NYC HEALTH & HOSPITALS CO RPORATIO N 
New York , NY 


NYC HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRA­
TION 
New York , NY 


NYS DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
New York , NY 


NYS DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
New York , NY 


NYS URBAN DEVELOPMENT CO RPO RATIO N 
New York, NY 


OFFICE OF THE BRONX BO ROUGH 
PRESIDENT 
New York , NY 


PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
Los Angeles, CA 


PORT AUTHO RITY OF NEW YORK & 


NEW JERSEY 
New York , NY 


TREMONT COMMO NWEALTH COUNCIL 
VOCATIO NAL INSTRUCTIONS PROJECT INC. 


New York , NY 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN 


DEVELOPMENT 
Wash ington , D C 


U .S. SMALL BU SINESS ADMINISTRATION­
DISTRICT O F COLUMBIA 
W ash ington, DC 


CORPORATE EXECUTVE FELLOWS 
MENTOR CONTRIBUTORS 
AETNA LIFE & CASUALTY 
Hart ford, CT 


APPLE COMPUTER, INC. 
Cupert ino, CA 


CITICORP SECURITIES, INC. 
New York, NY 


THE EQUITABLE 
New York , NY 







NATIONAL URBAN FELLOWS, INC./FINANCIAL SUPPORTERS 
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1993-1995 


CORPORATE EXECUTIVE FELLOWS 
MENTOR CONTRIBUTORS fcontJ 


GLENMEADE TRUST COMPANY 
Philadelphia, PA 


KALKINES, ARKY, ZALL & BERNSTEIN 
New York, NY 


PACIFIC BELL 
San Jose, CA 


RJR Nabisco, Inc. 
New York, NY 


STERLING HEALTH CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, 
INC. 
New York, NY 


UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 
Atlanta, GA 


WNET!THIRTEEN 
New York, NY 


ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE & 
MANAGEMENT FELLOWS 
MENTOR CONTRIBUTORS 


BRISTOL-MEYERS SQUIBB COMPANY 
New York, NY 


NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
HEALTH SCIENCES 
Research Triangle Park , NC 


NYC DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION 
New York, NY 


U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 
Chicago, IL 


U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 
Las Vegas, NV 


U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 
Seattle, WA 


U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 
Washington, DC 


INDIVIDUAL CONTRIBUTORS 
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1994 
Marilyn Ababio 
Joseph M. Aguayo 
Luis Alvarez 
Phyllis E. Berry 
David Bowie 
Benjamin Butler 
G. Paul Carr 
William E. Coleman, Jr. 
Pedro Diaz & Yvette Malave-Diaz 
Karen I. Duckett 
Adolfo Echeveste 
Severo Esquivel 
Providence Rodriquez-Fioresca 
jessica K. Fowler 
William j. Hunter 
Debra Fraser-Howze 
Bridget A. Gonzales 
Harvey johnson 
Lynn Lively 
Frank Logue 
Leo Lozada, Jr. 
Luis Martinez 
Lourdes Travieso Parker 
Isabelle Torres Perez 
Elsa Vega-Perez 
Juan Rosario, Ed.D. 
Philip Rutledge 
Elisa Maria Sanchez 
Jerry Santillan 
George Siberon 
Nathaniel 0. Simmons 
Ted Tedesco 
Lorraine Vega 
Martina H. Varnado 
Graham W. Watt 


American Airlines has made 
substantial in-kind contributions 


annually to National Urban Fellows, Inc. 
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National Urban Fellows, Inc. 
55 West 44 Street 
Suite 600 
New York, NY 10036 
212.921.9400 
Fox: 212.921.9572 


Programs of National Urban Fellows, Inc. 
Notional Urban/Rural Fellows 
Corporate Executive Fellows 
Environmental Science & Management Fellows 
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INC FACTS 
Background 
National Urban Fellows, Inc., a private not-for-profit SOl(c) 3 organization, was founded in 1969 
as a cooperative project of Yale University, the National League of Cities and the U.S. 
Conference of Mayors, with financial support from the Ford Foundation. Initially charged with a 
mission to identify, recruit and train minority men and women to occupy leadership and policy­
making positions in America's cities, the organization expanded its purpose in 1980, to address 
the economic and community leadership needs of rural America. It has since added programs to 
increase opportunities for women and minorities in business and industry (1985), as well as in the 
field of environmental science and management (1990): After 26 years, the National Urban 
Fellows, Inc. stands as a model for leadership training, having qualified nearly 700 men and 
women -- African Americans, Hispanics, Whites, Native Americans, Asian Americans, and others 
- for executive positions in public and private institutions thro•Jghout the United States, Puerto 
Rico, Africa and ofEurope. 


Programs 
• 


• 


• 


National Urban/Rural FeUows - The cornerstone of National Urban Fellows, Inc., this 
fourteen-month fellowship provides mid-career professionals in the public sector an 
opportunity to enhance their leadership skills and earn a Master in Public Administration. 
Corporate Executive Fellows - The Corporate Executive Fellows program, a two-year 
fellowship, prepares corporate executives for senior-level management careers and affords 
participants an opportunity to earn a Master in Business Administration. 
EnvironmentJll Science and Management FeUows- Initiated in 1991, the program is also a 
two-year fellowship that leads participants to a Master of Science degree and is a source for 
diverse leadership in the areas of environmental protection, conservation and management. 


Core Elements 
While each program has specific admission requirements, all fellowship programs combine intense 
academic study with professional experience in their respective field, and leadership forums to 
focus on public policy issues and share professional and personal experiences. Core program 
elements include: 


• Academic coune of study leading to a Master degree 


• Mentonhip enduring a minimum of nine months to twelve months with a senior level 
executive in the public or private sector 


• Mid-year conference with fellows and mentors, to concentrate on strategies to enhance the 
nation's leadership 


• Stipends of$20,000 to $30,000 per fellowship program 
• Book, travel and relocation allowance 


ew Yorfl. ew Yorfl 1 Fu: (212) 121-1572 
Prop-una: allonal rban!Ru,.l FeU Corpo...U Executive FeU and EJTrironm nlal lence Manq ment Fell 
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Luis Alvarez 
President 


As President of National Urban Fellows, Inc., since 1976, Luis Alvarez 
oversees the management of one of the country's premiere national leadership 
development programs geared toward professional mid-career minorities and 
women. Now in its 26th year, the National Urban Fellows, Inc. has 
celebrated the graduations of 683 individuals who now occupy significant 
leadership positions nationwide. 


Through vision and foresight, Mr. Alvarez (a graduate of the program, Class 
of 1972) has expanded the National Urban Fellows, Inc. programs to include 
not only the National Urban/Rural Fellows, but also the Corporate Executive 
Fellows launched in 1985 and the Environmental Science & Management 
Fellows created in 1990. The mission of all three fellowships is to enhance 
the participation of mid-career professionals who are women, minorities and 
members of socially disadvantaged groups in the public, corporate and 
environmental arenas. 


Prior to joining the National Urban Fellows, Inc., Mr. Alvarez was Chief 
Executive Officer of ASPIRA of America, Inc. (1972-1975). Under his 
guidance, ASPIRA of America prospered and played a significant role in 
expanding and strengthening educational opportunities for Hispanic children 
which culminated in the famous legal decision ASP IRA Consent Decree vs. 
The Board of Education of New York City. 


As Special Assistant to the U.S. Commissioner ofEducation in 1971, Luis 
was directly involved in the formulation of U.S. educational policies and 
assuring their implementation across the United States, Puerto Rico and 
Guam. Among the significant educational legislation which he helped to 
design for the U.S. Office of Education were: The Bilingual Education Act, 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, and the Career 
Education and Education Renewal Act. 


National Urban Fellow., Inc. 55 Wnt 44th Street, Suite 600 New York, New York 10036 (212) 921-NOO Fax: (212) 921-9572 


Programs: National rban/Ru ral Fellows, Corpomu Executive Fellows, and Environmental Science & Man agement Fellow8 







Alvarez 
Pagel 


Mr. Alvarez has been invited to serve as Board Director of numerous national 
and local institutions which include: 


Present: 


Board Member - Puerto Rican Legal Defense & Education Fund 
Board Member - Police Athletic League 
Board Member - United Hospital Fund 
Trustee- Children's Television Workshop 
Secretary to the Corporation - LatinoNet 
Chairman - National Community for Latino Leadership 


Fonner: 


Trustee - WNET !Thirteen 
Chairman of the Board - Bronx Lebanon Hospital Center 


Among the numerous awards and citations Luis has received in recognition of 
his vision and accomplishments are: 


• Aspen Institute Society of Fellows 
• The Whitney M . Young, Jr. Award 
• National Hispanic Hero Award 
• The Mid-West Voter Registration & Education Project 
• The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Recognition Award 


In the field of international affairs, Luis served as a member of the U.S. 
Official Delegation at the Panama Canal Transfer as well as a member of the 
Hispanic Leaders Delegation to Israel. 


Married to the former Judith Dominguez, he and his wife reside in New York 
City and Fire Island. They are the proud parents of three children and the 
doting grandparents of two grandchildren. 
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Edwin D. Acevedo 
Director of Programs 


Mr. Edwin D. Acevedo is a native New Yorker, born and raised in the South 
Bronx, where he attended parochial schools. After attending the State 
University of New York at Albany and completing both his BA in Psychology 
and MA in Criminal Justice, Mr. Acevedo worked with the NYS Division for 
Youth in Albany, NY specializing in planning, research and evaluation. In 
1980, he joined the Washington office of SER-Jobs for Progress, Inc., a 
national Hispanic not-for-profit organization, where he served as a program 
development officer and lead analyst on employment and training legislation. 


His focus on urban policy led to a National Urban Fellowship in 1982, 
resulting in a nine-month assignment with the Maricopa County Manager in 
Phoenix, Arizona. Upon completing the MP A program at Baruch College, 
Mr. Acevedo returned to SER as its Regional Manager for East Coast 
Corporate Relations in New York City. In the Fall of 1984, he joined the 
original staff of the City Volunteer Corps (CVC), an innovative Mayoral 
program in community service which was the model for the Presidential 
National Service Program. He served as the program's Deputy Director and 
Director of Operations. 


Mr. Acevedo left CVC in 1988 to serve as the Special Assistant to a Member 
of the NYC Board ofEducation where he advised on all programmatic and 
fiduciary matters coming before the Board. He continued his work with the 
Board as the Senior Operations Assistant for Special Education, overseeing 
the division's MIS, operations and budget functions, which entailed over $1 .5 
billion in expenditures. 


In 1992, Mr. Acevedo was offered the opportunity to design and implement 
an alternative high school for the Wildcat Service Corporation in New York 
City. After successfully launching the high school, he directed the agency's 
Adult Training Division where he focused on modernizing its program 
offerings in computer skills development. Mr. Acevedo joined the National 
Urban/Rural Fellows as Director of Programs in 1994. 


en> t21·NOO Fu: <212) 1'21· n 
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